¢

e

Fourth Session

RESTRICTED

- i _ LIMITED B
GENERAL AGREEMENT ON ) ' _GATT/CP.4/SR=15
TARIFFS AND TRADE | - 3k ek L0,

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

CONTRACTING PARTIES

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FIFTEENTH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, .Geneva,
On Tuesday, 14 March 1950 at 2.30 p.m.
Chairman: Hon. IL.D. WILGRESS (Canada)

Sukjects discussed: 1. Australian Subsidy on.Ammonium
Sulphate - (continued discussion).
(GATT/CP.3/61 and GATT/CP.4/23).

2, 1050 Tariff Negotiations: other
plans and arrangements. .

3. Review of Brazilian internal taxes
(GATT/CP.3/42),

1. Australian Subsidy on Ammonium Sulphate (GATT/CP.3/61 ahd
- GATT/CP.4/23). ' '

Mr. EVANS (United States) said that his delegation had
followed the deliberations with great interest, and had come to

the conclusion tggg this difficult question, involving both
matters of fact/interpretation of provisions of the fgreemen?,
deserved the closest attention hy the Contracting Parties. At
this stage his delegation found it difficult to agree that Aus-
tralia had infringed the provisions of Article I and III of the /1
Agreement; but held the view that concessions granted_by sustralia,
at Geneva, had beexn impaired in a way that Chile might not te ’
reasonably expected to accept. Steps, therefore, should be taken
under Article XXIII 6f the Agreement, which provided for such
cases not necessarily involving any violation of the obligations
a contracting party under the Agreement. ﬁﬁis'delegation, there- 3
fore, supported'the proposeal that a working party should he set
up and entrusted with the tasks of studying the facts in relation
to the provisions of the Agreement. The report of such a working
party would ve valuable in guiding the Contracting Parties in ﬁ
dealing with similar cases in future. o

Mr. DEUTSCH (Canada) was do.btful whether the case came at all
within the p®™view of Articles I or III; in his view it was more
likely to fall under Articles XXIII and XVI. The Working Party
should be asked especizlly to study the provisions of the latter
~rticle in relation to this particular case. It would be useful
if Australia could supply statistical information on its trade in _



GLTT/CP.4/SR.15 _ 1
Fauge 2. ?
' 23t years in the products in question, and on their production.

' Mr. WAIKZR (iLuStralia) replied that the statistics of local
produetion of the two products were not gatisfactory, and could
not be readily supplied. He couid give figures relating to
consumption and importation of the products and further details
would be supplied to the “orking Party if the latter considered
it necessary. 'With-regard te the suggestion that Geneva con-
cessions had been nullified, he felt it reasonahle to say that
chan:zes in such war-time measures as subsidies must have “een en-
\visaged even at Geneva. When the war-time price-control powers
of the Government lapsed, a revision of the existing sutsidies
:ecame necessary., = Such measures were belng reviewed annually and
revisions made from time to time in acoordance with the changing
‘needs of the oountry. In this connection, he would mention that
\even the existing subsidy on immonium Sulphate was to be reviewed
in the course of the present year.

In reply to the Chilean representative, he said that whatever
werds might have been used by the Austraelian representative at the
negotiations 1n Lopdon, ustralla had definitely not accepted
that %t ed infringed any. prov181on of the lLgreement, ‘ut in
,view of the importance attached by Chile to the problem, /ustralia
had agreed to undertake negotiations under Article XXTIII with.a
view to providing a certain degree of satisfacticn for Chile. The
concessions offered by .ustralia were, unfortunately, not aocepted.

Referring to remarks of the Chilean representative at a previou
mzeting, Mr. WAIKER said he had not meant to cast any doubt on the
quality of €hilean Nitrate as a fertili'zer, nor had he implied q
that Nitrate as a fertilizer was intrin31cally inferior to
Ammonium Sulphate. But, the two fertilizers d4id have different
properties making them more suitable for different purposes and
different conditions. The preference in other eeuntries, such as
‘the United Kingdom and Sweden, for one or the other of them was,
therefore, not necessarily relevant. The chisf characteristics
of the two products might be briefly mentioned: Except in the
growing of sugar, nitrate eeuld be used only when mixed with other
fertilizers. In view of the mechanical process of such mixing
account had to be taken of the chemical properties of a fertilizer,
such as its moisture absorbing qualitias and its'readiness to
erystalize. It was clear that a fertilizer had to be chosen with



N

GLTT/CP.4/SR¢15
Page 3.

due regard to the conditions of agriculture, the properties of the
soil, and the nature of the product. Furthermoxe,dthe Chilean
representative had.viewed the question'merely'as one of the oom-
parative benfits to the industries producing the two fertilizersQ
From the . ustralian point of view, however, the abolition or
maintenance of such subsidies had to be decided with regard to
their 1mpact on agricultural deve10pmeni} and it was in the light |
of the needs of Lustralian agriculture that the government had
deeidedjprovisibnally'to withdrdw the subsidy on ome of the pro-
duots, and to retain it on'the other, 1In other words, it wag not
a question of two mutually substitutable fertilizers, but a.
question of the Government's policy with respect to the users of
the two products. The present policy of the Australian Govern-
ment happened to require the discontinuance of the indirect
subsidy on green vegetables which were benefiting_from the fact
that their prices were not controlled. ;

Mr., SH&CKLE (United Kingdom) agreed to the proposal to set
up & working party, believing that this was exactly the type of
question suitable for detailed study by a working group. The
legal quostion involved seemed 'to hinge on two facts, namely,
the extent of'acQual damage Chila was likely to suffer from the
suspension of the subsidy, and the intrinsic values of tpe two
products with respect to their particular use iIn Australia.
Besides these, there might be technical questions in. studying
which the'Working Party would néed help from iﬁdependent techniocal
experts, He would therefore suggest that the F.A.O. be approached
in the first instance and requested to give assistance, |

Mr. CASSI®RS (Belgium) also agreed to the proposal to refer
the question to a working party, and edded that in studying the

~question the working party should not confine its attention to

Article XVI, but also to Article III, paragraph 8 (b) and 9,

Afbecause it was a question of the impaof of subsidies on substitut-

able goods rather than of an impairmest of negotiated benefits.
Reference should also be made to paragraph 1 of Article XI, which
prehibits the use of restrictions other then duties, taxes or
other charges, whether made effective through quotas, benefits or
other measures. '

Mr. ALFONSO (Chile) thought it was necessary for him to re-.
fute certain facts given by the Australian representative.



— conES

'onl _
‘market, and pointed out that if nitrate was not relatlvely sult-

dissentim between Chilean export and Australian import subsidies

GLTT/CP.4/SRil5
Page 4.

Referring to the statement by Australia that the demand for

.nitrate was limited to- industrial purposes, Mr. nLFOFSO said

that ,ustralia was known to have been desirous of obtaining o
nitrate in. great quantities for agrioultural uses, and supported
his argument by quoting from various statements made by lustralian

'representatives at Fou.O‘ meetings, and further illustrated

figures for sustralian import of Chilean nitrate,
| Mr. “LFONSO then emphasized again that his Government was
not asking for a preferential treatment for Chilean nitrdte, but
J that 1t be. given -an ecual opportunity to compete in a free

able for Australian soil, then competition would naturally not
help its sale in that country. The present‘greater demend_ by
Afustrzlian produoers for ammonium sulphate than nitrate could
nct be regarded as indioating_their preference for the former
as it had been made cheaper by the discriminatory subsidy.
Referring to the remarks of the Belgian representative
Mr. LLFONSO pointed out that the unequal treatment accorded to
the two like products clearly interfered with competition, and
hence nullified Australia's undertaking to admit nitrate on a
competitive basis under duty. The actlion clearly alsc contra-
verted the basic principle of most-favoured-nation treatment
embodied in Lrticle I: 1. Furthermore, the spirit of. Lrticle
V1 was not respeoted, although it would not be necessary to go
i‘.nto the details of the provision, Wherever LTtiecle. XXIII: 1 g
(b) referred to "any measure, whether or not it conflicts with
the provisions of this agreement, the case clearly falls under ‘
the latter category."- ' ' | :
Mr. VALKR (Australia) replied that most of the points
mentioned by the Chilean reprzsentative were suitable for detailed
study by.the working party, but he would reply briefly as follows:
It.was.not his imprezsion that the decline in the import of'nitrate
into ‘ustralia was attributable to the abolition of subsidy;
figures showed cleerly that the decline had begun before that
action was taken,. He would further point out that the figures
presented by Chile did not agree with his own data, but this
might be due to the inclusion or exclusion of re-exports or to

owing to the lepse of time for shipments to reach ‘ustralia. The




b

GALTT/CP.4/SR.15 : e
Page 5. : ‘

import of nitrate for industrial uses, as for the manufacture of
other fertilizers, was hever covered by the subsidy designed to
benefit agricultural producers. .

The CH.IRM..N summed up the discussions and suggested a pro-
cedure for the study of this question. Besides the facts in
relation to ;ustralia's trade and production of thg products, and
the, legal implications of the provisions of the ngreement, the
working party might have to study several technical questions,
and for this purpose they might nced to consult with intér—govern-"
mental organizations, He suggested that the Executive Secretary
should, in the first instance, enquire if the F...0. regional '
office attached to the E.C.E. in Geneva had any experts on fertili-
zers, and if not, then other organizations should be apprcached. '
If the Working Party so derired, consultation wifh experts could
be arranged by the Executive Secretary. With regard to the legal
aspects of the question, certain articles of the igreement referred
to in the Chilean declaration (GiATT/CP.4/23), and the representatives
of the United States and Canada had supported the view that dis-
cussion should take place under paragraph 1 of Article XXIII. -

The Working Party, therefore, had to determine whether benefit
aceruing to Chile had been impaired. Other provisions of the.
Lgreement referred to at this discussion were Article XVI, iArticle
I and irticle II: 2 and 4. The applicability of these provisibns
was, however, doubted by certain other representatives.  These,

‘as well as those referred to by the Belgian representative, namely

srticle YXI: 1 and article III: 8 (b) and 9, should also be examined
by the Working Party. Following the precedent of past sessions,
the CH..IRM-N suggested that a small working party consistiné of
5 members should be set up and given sufficiently broad terms of
reference which, he proposed as follows: _ '
"To consider the arguments submitted by the delegations
of iustralia and Chile, with respect to the Australian -
subsidy on ammonium sulphate, and to make appropriate
recommendations to the Contracting Parties with refer-
ence to the relevant provisions of the Agreement"'
In reply to a question by the Chilean representative, the CHLIRM.N
said ihat the Eaecutive Secretary would make an enquiry about the
avaiiébility of experts in Geneva, and would ndtify theAWorkingA
Party what technical assistance could be obtéined.



G..TT/CP. 4/SR 15
.Page 6.

" Mr. EV.NS (United States) suggested that the Working Party
ahould-conslder first whether, and to what extent, it needed
technical assistance before éteps were taken by the Executive
Séqretary'to obtain it, since otherwise a massive amount of
information might be assembled to serve no useful purpose.

- Inreply the CH.IRM.N said it was his urderstanding that

the Executive Secretary should be asked to ascertain whether
sxpert assieflnae was available; the decision as to whether, such
_ assistance'was called for would in any case be made by the Workins
Party itself. : '

The proposal to set up a Working Party, and the proposed
terms of reference having been approved, the CIAIRM.N, with the
concurrence of the meeting, appointed the following contracting
_parties as members of the Working Party:

isustralia United Kingdom Q\
| Chile ' United States
Norway

with Mr. OFTEDAL (Norway) as Chairman,

"2{‘ 1350 Teriff Negotiations: Other Plans and srrangements.

- The dHAIRMAN recalled the discussions on February 27 and 28
when it was agreed that the subject te reverted to after 20, March,
the date set for the reply to the questionnaire relating to
tariff negotiations, Meanwhile, he invited discussion on any
"other points which might be disposed of refore that date,

Mr., IMHOFF (Fecasral Republic of Gormeny) made a statement in
. whieh he made four points: His Government regretted that seotioné“
of the new Germen customs tariff cculd not be supplied to contract-
ing parties until the middle of May; his Guvernment wished to de
allowed the same extersion of time limit to 15 July for submission
of requests on governments requesting concessions from Germany
as those governments. The import equalization law relating to
agricultural products was neither restrictive nor discriminatory
and would be in force only until June 30, 1950, and his Government
might have to ¥§§§Eﬁ its position i1f other countries intended to
inorease their customs tariffs. (The original text of the state-
ment is annexed to this summary record).

Mr. Vun BLLNKENSTEIN (Netherlands) would like to know first,
why the German Foderal Republic could not submit its lists of
requests ty 15 June; as the tariffs of the other countries were



G.TT/CP.4/SR.15
Puge 7.

already available to the German Government it would not have the
same difficulty in preparing such lists as would oﬁher countriesf
because of the absence of a German_customs_tarlff until May of.

this year, He also wished to know_whether the import equali{
zétion system would be completely terﬁinated by 30 June. = Thirdly,
he enquired to which governments the.German.representatiVe alludeﬂ _

when he intimated that other countries might'intend'thinerease.

their customs tariffs; the ccntinued binding of existing'tariffs
oontained in the G.TT Schedules was being considered . by the Con-
tracting Parties and the intention had been demonstrated_that the
Schedules were to be revalidated with limited .alterations onmly in
exceptional cases and in accordance with itrticle XXVIII. It '
would be interesting to know whether the information which the
Gorman representative referred to related to any centracting-'
parties or other gocvernments,  Furtheér, as there was no German
tariff in existence it was also puzzling to hear that the Garmen
Republic was contemplating an increase in its tariffs. .

. Mr. IMHOFE (Gormany) replied that no specific governments -

were mentioned in the communication which he had received from

his Government but he would point out that a similar assertion
was made in a statement submitted earlier by the Netherlands
delegation. . o

Mr, Van BLANVENSTEIN (Netherlands) replied that the document
to which he believed the German representative referred contaiﬁed
a proposition relating to the re- imposition of existing teriff
rates after the liberalization of trade and not to any increase
in tariff rates, : ‘ S

Mr. IMHOFF (Germeny) referring to the questioh~by the’Nether;d
lands representative said that although he himself was not certain
as to the exact meaning of his Government's instructiOns'it was |
clear that since the pre-war German tariff had been in’ force since
1902 and had Lecome obsolete, . a thorough rev181on was necessary. i
Besides it was also desirable on technical grounds“to have a new' '
tariff on an ad valorem basis, - At any rate, the German delegation
had declared a week ago that its Government would ablde by'the
prinoiple laid down in paragraph 3 (iv) of the Memorandum on
Tariff Negotiations and that it had no intention to increase its
tariffs, ‘ ' e _ o

Mr. SVEINBJORNSSON (Denmark) thanked the German representative




GATT/GP.4/SR.15 - |
Page 8. _

for his answer to the question on the German import equalization
system and for the confirmation that the system would e oome B
pleteiy abolished on 30 June, 19505 | '_

Mr. SHACKLE (United Kingdom) wished to associate himself with
the remarks of the Danish representative and added that it would
be desirable if the German requests could be sent out as soon as
pussible as there was no reason why the postponement of the date
for the submission of lists of requests *y contracting parties
to Germany should entail any delay in the other direction, the
tariffs of the other governments having been available to the _
German government. The objective of avoiding oompetitive'raises
of tariffs should not be defeated; if'delays and obstaoies _
similar to those encountered at Annecy were not to occur again at
Torquay & late revision of its tariff by any particlipat_ing govern- “
ment must be avoided. _

The CHAIRMAN proposed that the question he left for reconcider-
ation after March 20. . |

The CHAIRMAN recalled the statement made by the Netherlands
representative at the 12th meeting, which, he pointed out, should
be discussed under this agenda item, as it primarily concerned
tariffs. -

Mr. SHACKLE (United Kingdom) felt that it would ke Tnyiassary
to appoint a working party to study the question; Dby so‘doing,tha

. . Contracting Parties might waste much time in endless references

to the provisions of the Agreement. The precise incidence of '

.particular tariff rates on the trade of a country and especially

the. economic effeet of tariffs was all but unascertainatle, Even
if the protective effect of a tariff could e demonstrated in

-numerical figures, which was obviously not the case, it would still

pe difficult to see what action could be taken to implement the
Netherlands proposal. He would therefore suggest that cbntracting

" parties hear in mind the provisions of paragraph 2 (d) of Article

17 of the Havana Charter and negotiate in accordance with the
relevant rules in the Memorandum on Tariff Negotiationms. He hoped
that the pfoposal to have this studied by a working party would

not be pressed. Finally, Mr, SHACKLE wished to observe that the

_aetion and consultation contemplated in the last part of Mr., Spier-

enburg's statement at the 12th meeting would be conducted within
the terms of the General Agreement.,



vy

8ATT/CP.4/SR.15
Page 9.

Mr. EVANS (Uuited States) thanked the Netherlands'aelegation
for the good service it had done in. remindlng contracting partles
of the provisions of Article 17: 2{(4d) of the Havana Charter. He
would draw attention to the fact that in past negotlatlons the
United States had agreed to lower substantielly its tariffs in
exchange for the binding of lower tariffs by other countries.

The United States had observed and would. continue to observe that
principle in conducting its negotiations and there was no reason -
why the principle could not be observed in practlce w1thout
elaborate stipulations, ; : '

Mr. DEUTSCH (Canada) wished to assoclate himselt with the
remarks of the United States. representative and assured the con-
tracting parties that Canada would give special attentlon to this
rule in the forthcoming tariff negotlations.

Mr. Van BLANKENSTEIN: (Netherlands) agreed with the United
Kingdom representative that 1t would be difficult to oompare
different levels of tariffs, However, he felt that a valuable
yardstick had been given by the Chairman, that is, the equality
of access to international markets, the absence of quantitative
restrictions and the general reductlon of tariffs, which were
the chief objectives of the Agreement. - He was gr;tifie& to hear
the remarks of the Canadian, United Kinggom and Unitéd States
representatives that this principle would be observed at the
forthcoming negotiations. t

In summing up the CHATIRMAN sald that the discu351on had
clearly shown that contracting parties recognlzed the importance
of the rule that "the binding against increase of low duties or
of duty-free treatment shouwld in principle be recogniied'es a con-

‘cession equivalent in value to the substantial reduction of high

duties or the elimination of tariff preferences." Since there was
no support for the proposal to set up a working party 1t would
suffice to record that the Contracting Partles took note Of the
statement delivered by the chairman of the_Netherlands Delegatlon
on March 6, 1950 (GATT/CP.4/SR.12) end the subsequent discussions.

3. Review of Eraz;;ianf:nternal Taxes-‘(GATT/CP{3/42, para 19).
The CHAIRMAN drew attention to the report of Working Party 7

of the Third Session and especia;l& to peragraphs 17 to 19 thereof,
which stated that the Brazilian_Government &ad already called the



>

GATT/CP,4/SR.1

Page 10. - : . ‘
attention of the Brazilian,coﬁgrasa.to all existing laws providing
for different levels of taxation with respect to domestic.and
imported produets in order to bring'those laws into conformity
with Article III of the General Agreement and that a statement

had been made by the Brazilian Delegation that 1ts Government was
willing to send A further message to Congress asking it to proceed
ag soon a8 possiklz with amendment of all such laws and in partiou~
lar the law of 1948. The question was to be reviewed -at this .
session in the light of action taken by the Brazilian Government,

Mr. MOREIRA DA SILVA (Brazil) stated that according to the
information available although the Administrative kranch of his
Government had made recommendations, the Brazilian Congress had
so far not acted upon them, The antracting Parties would te ‘
informed when the legislature had proceeded with any such amend-
 ments. .' ,

Mr. EVANS (United States) said that he understood that
previous delays in such action had ®een due to Congressional pro-
cedures relating to budget matters, It was not clear whether
provision had ween made for such emondments in the budget for the
current year, s He would therefore hope that a specific statement
on the steps taken would »e made during the session.

Mr. PHILIP (France) ,remarked that the reply had been long
expected. Ih view of the long delay he wou;d expect that at
least some indication be given even if it related only to adminis-
trative action in proposing the am_endments to Congress. ‘

Mr. SHACKLE (United Kingdom) truste@ that as detailed infor-
mation as possible would be supplied ®efore the end of this
session. ' )

Mr. EVANS (United States) suggested that it would be helpful
if information ocould ®é supplied on specific actions. taken with
respect to easoch of the laws referred to in the Working Party reportJ

Mr. MOREIRA DA SILVA (Brazi1) regretted that he was not able
at the moment to give the information requested, but said he would |
telegraph his Government at onee to ask for precise information,
adding that he appreciated the disappointment which had heen
caused to the other céntracting partizs.

The CHAIRMAN proposed, and the meeting agreed, to. leave the
matter on the Agenda and to revert to it before the end of this
~session.

The meeting adjourned at 5.40 p.m.




GATT/CP.4/SR.15 5
Page 11. =y

ANNEZX

Declaration made by Mr, Ludwig Imhoff, the
Observer for Germany at the 15th Lieeting
on 14 March, 1950, (Original text provided
by the Germun delegation).

Mr, Chairman,

Will you allow me to answer some questions which have been
put to the German Delegation in the course of the last plenary
meetings.

Firstly, different Delegations have expressed their wish to
obtain in advance sections of the new Cerman customs tariff draft,
Therefore,_I have requested my Government to give me information
i sections of our customs tariff draft could be submitted in
advance. My Government has now informed me that -~ at its regret -
it will not be possible to do so, because a new draft must be an
harmonious whole, and besides there are technical reasons why
singular sections cannot be submitted before. The complete
draft of the customs tariff will be submitted by the middle of
May, as it has been stated @n the plenary mseting of the 28
February, 1950.

Secondly, aoéording to the wishes of the Delegation of the
United Kingdom and other Delegations, the Federal Republic agrees
to postpone until the 15th of July the term of the 15th of June
for acceptance of the lists of requests of the other countries.

‘But on our side, I think, we should also have the possibility to

send our lists of requests in a corresponding delay to those
countries to whom we shall not yet have sent lists of requests cu
the 15th June and who will send us their lists of requests not
earlier than the 15th of July.

Thirdly, in the plenary meeting of the first of March,
according tc the wish of the Delegation of Denmark, the German
Delegation has made a preliminary statement about the German law
concerning the Import Equalization on agricultural products. As
a representative of the Ministry of Agriculture has now arrived,
some details can be given, which may be of interest also for other
delegations. The German Import Equalization Law has zen changed
in such a manner that it is 1n no way of restrictive character.

By changing the equalization amounts the existing internal prices
are not altered, Neither is the Import Equalization a discrimin-
ation to any cther count:fa Under the conditions now existing



GATT/CP.4/SR.15

Page 12.

it 'will be uniferm for all countries, The Import Tquzlization
is a transitional measure. The law on the Import Equalization
will be in force until the 30th of June this year. In the nean-
time the number of items under equalization amounts has become
smaller and also the amounts have been diminished.

Besides may I mention, news has reached my Government that
other States have the intention to increase the customs tariff
rates. My Government is very impressed by this news, It would
be a difficult situation for Germany if other States would come
to a considerable raise of customs duties. Therefore, my Goever:
ment has instructed me to make a reserve as follows: If other
States should increase their customs tariff rates, the Federal
Government would have to prepare similar measures, that means Ehf
Federal Government would have to follow the lead.



